Responses to Questions through 9/15/04

**Offerors should note an amendment to the RFP is planned to be released within the next week.

Responses to Questions on TIALS FINAL RFP: NNC04052948R
26. Section C-4 Administrative and Financial Database, table, page 6 Under item 4. Contractor Plans, b. Quality Assurance Plan, it states the plan shall be submitted to the COTR for approval within 30 days of contract award.  However, in C-5 Administrative Reporting Requirements, E – Quality Assurance Plan, page 10, it states the QAP shall be submitted with the proposal.  Which is correct?  No instructions for delivery are provided in Section L. 
RESPONSE:  Thank you for identifying the inconsistency.  Offerors are directed to the instructions in Section L for the Quality Assurance Subfactor.  No formal Quality Assurance Plan is required in the proposal, rather a discussion of a quality assurance system per the Section L instructions.  The formal Quality Assurance Plan is required 30 days after award per Section C-4.  The QAP instructions under C-5 should be ignored.  Please follow Section L instructions for proposal preparation in regards to Quality Assurance.
27. Section C-4 Administrative and Financial Database, table, page 6 Under item 4. Contractor Reports, a. Contractor Management Plan, it states this plan is to be submitted as part of the proposal. However, in C-5 Administrative Reporting Requirements, A- Contractor Management Plan, page 9, it states the plan shall be submitted to the CO and COTR 30 days after contract start.  Which is correct?  No instructions for delivery are provided in Section L.

RESPONSE:  The Contract Management Plan as referred to in Section C-4 of the final RFP is considered to be your submitted proposal.  Offerors are directed to the Section L instructions for Volume I Mission Suitability.
28. Section J, Attachment B, TIALS Performance Standard # 48 To better understand the performance requirement, could you provide the sampling method used to achieve a monthly sample size of 6.25%?

RESPONSE:  A minimum of 6.25% monthly sample size is the government’s standard.  Offerors should propose sample methods based on their approach.  
29. Section J, Attachment L Is the office space shown, the office space for the contractor’s program management and administrative support staff?  If so, where is it located?  Is the office furnished with government furniture and equipment?  Are the computer and other office equipment government furnished?  Does the Government provide office supplies?

RESPONSE:  Yes.  Building 21.  Yes.  Yes, except for stand alone contractor-related requirements.  Yes.
30. Section J, Attachment T   Does any of the LTID information systems listed currently interface with the incumbent contractor’s Administrative and Financial Database (AFD) System (PIMS)?  If so, which information systems?  Will any of these systems need to interface with the AFD of the TIALS successful offeror?  If so, which information systems?  

RESPONSE:  Currently there are no direct data links or requirements for a direct data link.  Data is fed via separate reports/uploads.  
31. Attachment K , 4.1 Calibration Services, b. Description of Work  To assist our developing innovation recommendations and their potential benefits, could you provide;
Number of fluid flow calibrations performed last year and the average time spent per calibration.
RESPONSE:  Please refer to section J attachment K for historical data. Further breakdown is not available.

Annual number of instrument repairs completed by the metrology contractor and the number of items outsourced to offsite vendors.

RESPONSE: Please refer to section J attachment K for historical data. In the summary of hours chart all work under work centers 10 and 16 are outsourced. 
32. Section L.12 Proposal Page Limitations, 5 A limit of no smaller than Arial 12 point for figures and charts that are mostly text, e.g. tables will cause tables to be large and cover multiple pages in some situations.  Would it be possible to just ensure they are easily readable or allow no smaller than 10 point?  This difference in font size would lead to smaller tables and be easier comprehended/read by the evaluators.

RESPONSE:  Other than in graphs, charts, pictures, tables, etc., offers are instructed to use a type size not smaller than Arial 12 point.
33. Section L.14 Preparation of Volume I, KP1 Since each offeror will specify their proposed number of key personnel, would it be possible to remove the resumes and letters of commitment from the Volume I page count limitation?  Then offerors would not constrain the number of their key personnel recommendations based on page limitations

RESPONSE:  The Government is not revising the above referenced instruction on Volume I page count limitation.
34. Section L.16, 7 Company Income Statements   As a small privately held business, balance sheet information is sensitive. Could we include the income statements and balance sheets as an attachment to the Volume II- Cost/Price?  We would provide in the Past Performance volume a reference to them and include a discussion of company financial strength to perform the contract.

RESPONSE:   Company income statements and balance sheets shall be submitted as part of the Volume III – RELEVANT EXPERIENCE & PAST PERFORMANCE. 
35. The new wage determination (WD 94-2416, Rev. 20) specified labor rates for a significant number of Non-Exempt Non-Union (NENU) labor classifications that are higher than the rates currently being received by incumbent employees (Appendix L.3).  May we presume offerors are expected to adjust the current incumbent rates to meet the minimum rates specified in the WD?

RESPONSE:   Yes, as stated in L.15, “The contract will be subject to the Service Contract Act of 1965, as amended.”  Also see [KCDE]K.11 WAGE DETERMINATION—MINIMUM WAGES AND CONFORMABILITY (GRC 52.222-96) (JUN 2002) 

*Please note, the rates currently being received by incumbent employees are found in the Labor Pricing Template:  Incumbent Direct Labor Rates (INFO) in Appendix L1 in the final RFP.
36. L.11.d instructs offerors to submit two (2) copies of the cost/price proposal to the cognizant DCAA office. L.15 says that offerors are required to submit one hard copy and one electronic copy of the cost/price proposal to the cognizant DCAA office.  Please clarify. 

RESPONSE:   Thank you for identifying the inconsistency in the final RFP.  Please follow the instructions below for submission of proposals to both the NASA Glenn Research Center and the cognizant DCAA office.
	Offerors shall submit proposals to NASA in three volumes as specified below:


	
	Hard Copy/Printed Submission:
	Electronic/CD Submission:

	
	Original
	Copies
	Original
	Copies

	Volume I:

Mission Suitability
	1
	9
	1
	2

	Volume II:

Cost/Price
	1
	3
	1
	2

	Volume III:

Relevant Experience/

Past Performance
	1
	9
	1
	2


	Offerors shall submit the Volume II Cost proposal to DCAA as specified below:



	
	Hard Copy/Printed Submission:
	Electronic/CD Submission:

	
	Original
	Copies
	Original
	Copies

	Volume II:  Cost/Price
	0
	1
	0
	1


37. The Government has added a number of new RFP requirements in Section L from the draft RFP, including key personnel data and examples of improving performance standards. Please consider excluding the key personnel resumes and commitment letters from the 100-page Volume I page limitation.
RESPONSE:   Please see the response to question # 33. 
38. Please consider allowing other 12-point font types (e.g., Times New Roman) in addition to Arial 12 point for proposal preparation.

RESPONSE:   See response to question #32. 
39. Section F.3 C, Financial Management Reports, please clarify the applicability of NFS 852.242-74.

RESPONSE:  The first sentence in the Reports of Work clause states that some of the reports may not be applicable to this contract.  NFS 1852.242-74 is not applicable to this type of contract.  

40. Section F D, Electronic Submissions: Technical Progress Narrative refers to Section B (Work Plan). Please clarify.  Also, please clarify the meaning of Draft Final Report.

RESPONSE:  A Final report may be required on this contract.  In that event, language governing the report is included.  The clause will be amended to include some language on Technical Progress Narrative.
41. The Contract Level WBS Cost Summary Template does not include a line item for Overtime costs.  Please confirm that offerors may add this line to the WBS Template.

RESPONSE:   Offerors may add elements (e.g. rows and columns) to the cost templates as they see fit.  However, rationale must be included for such additions in order for the government to conduct a fair evaluation.  
42. RFP Section L specifies the use of three separate workbooks for the Excel Pricing Model.  Please consider allowing offerors to combine all of the RFP-specified worksheets into a single workbook.  This approach would facilitate the use of named fields and eliminate the need for external file linkages.

RESPONSE:   The government does not intend to revise the referenced instruction for the preparation of the Excel Pricing Model.  
43. Section L.11 (a) requires “original plus 2 electronic copies” of the Cost/Price Volume.  Section L.15, Excel Pricing Model organization (page 60) requires only 2 electronic copies.  Please clarify.

RESPONSE:   See response to question #36.
44. Section J, Attachment M.  Is the list of vehicles a list of all vehicles used on the contract or just for WBS 1.0?  If not, what other vehicles are used and what type of insurance coverage is required?
RESPONSE:   There are vehicles used on other tasks.  Insurance costs are included in the government estimate of Other Direct Costs to be used in the cost proposal.  Also, please see H.11 MINIMUM INSURANCE COVERAGE (NASA 1852.228-75) (OCT 1988) 

45. The last sentence of Sub-factor 1 – Management/Technical approach (page 66) states in part, “…demonstrated understanding of the requirements of the SOW…”, however there appears to be no requirement to provide this information in MTA 1, MTA2, or MTA3 (Section L, page 50).

RESPONSE:   Offerors are directed to the first sentence of MTA 1 on page 50 of the final RFP.
46. According to the first sentence of L.13, (page 49) “offeror’s and their subcontractors are required to submit their proposals in two formats (hard copy and CD).  Is this referring to cost information”?  Should these be submitted as part of our package or under separate cover?

RESPONSE:   See response to question #36.
47. The last sentence of item 6 “corporate structure” states, “For all offerors that intend to team, the Government will specifically need information from the same past corporate working relationship proposed in the Management/Technical Approach section ….”  It is unclear as to whether you are asking if the members of the team have worked together in the past or if they have experience in the areas they are proposed to support in Volume I.  Please clarify the intent of the corporate structure as it relates to past performance.

RESPONSE:  The Government is requesting information to evaluate if proposed teams have a history of working together, has that history been successful, and on what types of activities.  

48. Section L.15, Cost/Price Instructions, provide detail workbooks and instructions for each Offeror to complete for proposal submission.  The instructions entitled “Standard Labor Categories” directs each Offeror to provide a mapping from the government provided labor categories to the Offerors’ proposed labor categories.  However the instructions do not direct in what specific format the government would prefer for evaluation and review purposes.  

Is it acceptable to incorporate the mapping in the workbook template entitled “Mission Suitability Total Staffing Resources Template (MSTSRT)” by adding a column entitled “Proposed Labor Categories” alongside “Incumbent Labor Categories”?  This would allow the government one-for-one comparision.

RESPONSE:   Yes.  Offerors may add elements (e.g. rows and columns) to the cost templates as they see fit.  Rationale must be included for such additions in order for the government to conduct a fair evaluation.  

49. Section L.15, CORE Support Template Instructions (App. L2), Total Compensation Template, first paragraph cites that “This template is required by prime and all major subcontractors”.  The second paragraph cites that “This template is required of the offeror proposed as prime and all proposed subcontractors (major and minor) in a narrative format”.    

Please clarify if subcontractors considered as a minor subcontractor are required to complete the Total Compensation Template. 

RESPONSE:   No.  The Total Compensation Template is required for all prime contractors and all major subcontractors.  A major subcontractor is defined as performing work with annual estimated value that exceeds $500,000.  
50. Section J, Attachment G, provides the Wage Determination and Collective Bargaining Agreement subject to this solicitation.  The Wage Determination is dated June 21, 2004 and provides current wages and fringe benefit allowances.  However, the Collective Bargaining Agreement is dated April 27, 2001 and expired in April 2004.  As the contract provisions have each Offeror proposing indirect ceilings spanning a maximum of ten years, it is essential for each Offeror to adequately review, assess and have the opportunity to estimate the fringe benefit allowances commensurate to the period of performance that will impact indirect rates and ceilings.    

In the best interest of all offerors, we strongly recommend that the government amend the solicitation to incorporate the current Collective Bargaining Agreement negotiated in 2004?
RESPONSE:   Please see the response to question # 3 for proposal preparation.
51. Section J, Attachment G, provides the Area Wage Determination for the TIALS SCA workforce and Pricing Template L1, worksheet entitled “INFO” provides the current incumbent labor rates by labor category.   Comparing the June 2004 Area Wage Determination and the incumbent labor rates found in the pricing template, there are incumbent hourly labor rates not meeting the minimums cited in the area wage determination dated 21 June 2004.  

Will the government amend the “INFO” worksheet so the incumbent hourly rates are commensurate to the incorporated Area Wage Determination dated June 2004?
RESPONSE: No.  The current employees are under a different WD.  The WD included in the RFP was the most recent and is not in effect for the current contract employees, hence lower rates for some labor categories.  Offerors should insure they are in compliance with the RFP WD and consider the RFP labor information as they strategize their response to the RFP.    

52. Section L.15, Non-Labor Resource Independent Government Estimate, provides the overtime budget requirement for each contract period.  If the Offerors’ technical approach merits a lower overtime requirement lesser than the budgeted amount of $25,000 per annum, may the Offeror change or reduce the cost of overtime in their offer?   
RESPONSE: For proposal preparation and evaluation purposes, offerors can discuss innovative ways to reduce cost and perform the effort, but for cost evaluation purposes offerors shall include the Government estimate for each contract year.

53. Upon review of Attachment N, Incumbent Seniority Listing, Attachment W, IGE Labor Categories, and L1: CORE Incumbent Labor Category Listing (pricing template), several disparities were noted between the labor category listings.  Please clarify each disparity for the Offerors:  
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Att. N shows Computer Programmer I and Computer Programmer II.  

Att. W and L1 show Computer Programmer I and Computer Programmer III.

Should it be Computer Programmer II or III?

RESPONSE:   Att. W and L1 is correct.  There is no Computer Programmer II.
Att. N shows Photographer I and Photographer II.

Att. W and L1 show only Photographer II.

Should Photographer I be included in Att. W and L1?

RESPONSE:   Yes, please include Photographer I in Att. W and L1.  Appendix L1 will be amended and posted with a future amendment to the final RFP to clarify this listing.

Att. N shows Procurement Administrator.

Att. W and L1 did not show Procurement Administrator.

Should Procurement Administrator be included in Att W and L1?

RESPONSE:  This labor category is proposal specific to each offeror.
Att. N shows Production Control Clerk.

Att. W and L1 did not show Production Control Clerk

Should Production Control Clerk be included in Att. W and L1?

RESPONSE:   Yes, please include Production Control Clerk in Att. W and L1.  Appendix L1 will be amended and posted with a future amendment to the final RFP to clarify this listing.
Att. N shows Server Administrator.

Att. W and L1 did not Server Administrator.

Should Server Administrator be included in Att. W and L1?

RESPONSE:   Yes, please include Server Administrator in Att. W and L1.  Appendix L1 will be amended and posted with a future amendment to the final RFP to clarify this listing. 
54. This procurement is a 100% small business set-aside opportunity.  The solicitation provisions provide for a cost reimbursable award fee contract for the core period defined as years one through three.  Subsequently a cost reimbursable fixed fee/award term contract may be exercised for option years four through ten based on successful management, technical, and financial performance.     

The solicitation provisions also require each Offeror to propose indirect ceiling rates for the maximum contract period of performance, ten years.  A small business contracting with NASA as a normal business practice may provide indirect ceiling rates for a three or five-year period of performance.  A small business can reasonably estimate and forecast a business base and volume for a three or five year period.  However a small business proposing an indirect ceiling rate beyond a five-year period could become a potential indirect cost burden that may jeopardize the small business organization and the TIALS program.

As the Government has proposed an effective award term criteria to incentivize the small business contractor to perform exceptionally on a long term contract, we are proposing that the solicitation be modified to incorporate the same incentives to the indirect rate ceiling provisions.  The indirect rate ceiling provision may be modified to require each Offeror to propose indirect rate ceilings commensurate to the core period only.  Then at a pre-determined period in the core period, possibly as the award term is exercised for the option period(s), the contractor would propose and negotiate indirect ceiling rates for the remaining option periods.  This would allow the contractor and the TIALS program to assume normal risk with respect to indirect rate ceilings.
RESPONSE:   Thank you for the suggestion and we may consider this in the future.  However, for proposal preparation and evaluation purposes, the offeror should comply with the requirement of the RFP.  
55. The cost volume instructions for Appendix L2, CORE Support, Overhead/Indirect Expense Costs, instructs each Offeror to provide a detail description and classification of Labor Burden Costs.  The TIALS workforce is comprised of employees compensated under the provisions of a Collective Bargaining Agreement or an Area Wage Determination.  An AWD can change annually and the CBA is re-negotiated every three years.  Thus the fringe benefit costs collected in the labor burden changes significantly upon the anniversary of either of the two agreements.  Routinely an equitable adjustment proposal is submitted to the Contracting Officer to increase the funding amounts commensurate to the wage and/or fringe benefit related cost increases.    

As an Offerors’ labor burden may be part of their overhead pool which is set at a ceiling amount/rate, does the Government intend to exclude the labor burden portion from the overhead ceiling as the labor burden shall be subject to increases resulting from a CBA re-negotiation or AWD revision?
RESPONSE:   No.  Labor burden shall be included in the overhead pool.
56. The Statement of Work section 1.5.1.1, Bus, cites that the Offeror shall provide the supervision, labor, vehicles and insurance necessary to provide bus transportation…Section J, Attachment K shows that NASA owns two passenger buses for use on this program.  

It is not our interpretation that the Contractor shall be responsible to acquire the Buses for NASA but to perform the necessary supervision, operation, and maintenance of the NASA owned Buses in support of the TIALS program in consideration of SOW 1.5.1.1.   Please confirm our interpretation.
RESPONSE:   Any requirement for a bus, in addition to the NASA owned vehicles, will be the contractor’s responsibility.  The associated costs are included in the Government ODC estimate.  
57. Section L.11(a) that states, “All hard copies shall be contained in a spiral binder” 

Does the government’s interpretation of the term “spiral binder” include the use of what is commonly referred to as “19-hole binders” or “GBC binders”?
RESPONSE:   Yes.
58. Section L.11(b) that requires, “…a cover letter with the proposal….” Since this requirement includes pricing information, we interpret your instructions to mean the “cover letter” is to be included (bound with) only Volume II Cost/Price.

Is this interpretation correct? Do you in fact want the “cover letter” and its attachments bound with Volume II, or do you want it spiral bound as a separate (fourth) piece of our submission? Please clarify.
RESPONSE:   One cover letter should be submitted for the entire proposal encompassing Volume I, II, and III in accordance with L.11.  A separate cover letter shall also be submitted for Volume II in accordance with the instructions in L. 15.
59. Section L.11 and p.49, Section L.13. The table in paragraph L.11 states in part what is to be submitted, by giving an original and a number of copies “…and original plus 2 electronic copies.” Paragraph L.13 states, “Two disks (one original and one backup) must be provided.”

Does the government want 2 or 3 CD’s of each volume? Do we mark the copies as “Copy” or as “Backup”?
RESPONSE:   See response to question #36.
60. Section L.13. This section states, “The Government will use Microsoft Word 2002 and Excel 2002 for Windows….” Though not specifically stated, the wording implies we are to submit our electronic format in Word 2002 and Excel 2002. 

Comment: Submitting our proposal in any version of word could potentially cause font and pagination issues. For example, if the identical print drivers (a very unlikely occurrence) are not present on both the Government PC reviewing the document and the offeror’s PC preparing the document, pages probably will break differently. The entire issue of the Government having an editable Word document can be avoided by allowing the offeror to submit using Portable Document Format (.PDF). PDF format will appear exactly as submitted regardless of print drivers. The PDF viewer is readily available at no cost from numerous sources on the internet. 

Recommendation: NASA accepts our electronic submission in PDF format.
RESPONSE:   Please see response to # 77.
61. Section L.12.5 of the RFP, specifies that "figures and charts" may use a font type smaller than Arial 12 point, "so long as the figure or chart does not consist primarily of text."  Is it possible to clarify this requirement?  For example, is a bulleted list of short text items acceptable as part of a figure?
RESPONSE:   Please see response to #32 and #82.
62. Section L.14, KP2, requires completion of Attachment X.  Can we assume that the Arial 12 point font requirement does not apply to this Attachment?
RESPONSE:   Yes.
63. What are the fringe benefits currently being provided under the current contract?
RESPONSE:   The Government will NOT provide a description of the fringe benefits that are currently being offered to the incumbent contractor employees.  
64. Section C-9 General Safety, Health, Environmental, and Security established several health, safety and environmental training requirements. Training covering these specific areas is normally available at NASA Centers.

At GRC, do the contractor's health, safety, and environmental, etc. personnel and general employees have access to these courses on a regular basis?

RESPONSE:   Yes.  
65. Your response indicates a maximum of three questionnaires per prime contractor.

As a prime contractor, however, we are made up of three partners.  In order to show the core competencies of each partner, we need to send the questionnaires to 3 client references for each joint venture partner, for a total of 9 questionnaires.  We do not think that it is NASA's intent to limit past performance relevancy but rather to get the best indication of performance possible. Please clarify that this is acceptable.
RESPONSE:   Yes, this is acceptable.
66. Do you know if other companies have asked for any type of extension due to the hurricanes we have been experiencing lately and if not will the government consider an extension? Thanks
RESPONSE:  The Government has received a formal request for an extension and will be considering that request this week.   
67. In section L, MTA 2, the RFP states: 

"Identify the positions and personnel who would be responsible for performing the transition 

activities.  Primary areas to address are continuity of work currently performed by the incumbent 

contractor, adequacy of staffing levels, staff qualifications, and the timely transfer of existing 

tasks and minimizing work interruptions" 

Does the "adequacy of staffing levels and staff qualifications", refer to the qualifications of our transition staff or of the personnel to be hired to perform the TIALS effort? 

RESPONSE:   This refers to the phase-in activities. 
68. Does the Government expect a full-fledged, site-specific Safety and Health Plan in response to Subfactor 4 of the Mission Suitability Volume? If so, is the plan included or excluded from the page limitations? 

RESPONSE:   No.  The Subfactor 4 uses the term “discussion”.  Please also see the clause entitled “H.9 Safety and Health Plan.”
69. Please clarify the Volume III Past Performance instructions relating to Corporate Structure: 

"The Offeror and major subcontractors shall provide any corporate structure information for each of its reference contracts to assist in the Government’s evaluation.  For all Offerors that intend to team, the Government will specifically need information from the same past corporate working relationships proposed in the Management/Technical Approach section of the Offeror’s Volume I proposal. " 

a) Each of our Team Members is a single corporate entity and the past performance we are citing was performed directly by that entity. In this case, what information does the Government expect in this section? 

RESPONSE:   The Government expects past performance information on each single entity.
b) Please clarify the statement "from the same past corporate working relationships" - does this mean that the team members must have had a past working relationship?
RESPONSE:   No.  
70. Reference: Section 4.1d of the SOW, the Metrology section, which states that "IMTE shall be picked up from users for calibration and repair, and delivered to users after calibration and repair daily."  

Question: Does the Metrology Lab today operate a government furnished vehicle for this purpose, or does the lab use some kind of GRC-provided delivery/courier service?
RESPONSE:   No, the Metrology Lab does not operate a government furnished vehicle.  Yes, the lab uses some kind of GRC-provided delivery/courier service.
71. The cost/pricing templates do not include consistent elements of cost that are required to reconcile annual total estimated cost and fee to the Contract Level Cost Summary Template (CLCST ). On the Prime Cost Summary Template (PCST), Major Subcontractor Cost Summary Template (MSCST) and the Contract Level WBS Cost Summary Template (WBS), no line items are provided for entry of overtime costs and Government-directed Non-Labor costs (e.g. materials/supplies, travel, training, and stock), which total $3.5M per year.  Please modify the Prime Cost Summary Template, the Major Subcontractor Cost Summary Template and the Contract Level WBS Cost Summary Template to include the same elements of cost as those shown on the Contract Level Cost Summary Template.
RESPONSE:   The Prime Cost Summary Template, the Major Subcontractor Cost Summary Template and the Contract Level WBS Cost Summary Template will not be modified.  These templates, the Prime Cost Summary Template, the Major Subcontractor Cost Summary Template, and the Contract Level WBS Cost Summary Template, are not expected to show the Government-directed items.  The Contract Level Cost Summary Template (CLCST) is the only template that has these costs because they are estimates at the contract level.  The CLCST represents the referenced costs plus all other costs from the Prime Cost Summary Template (PCST) and Major Subcontractor Cost Summary Template (MSCST).  If these government directed costs are distributed on the lower level templates, they will be double counted into the total contract cost.
72. Section C.5 of the Statement of Work, subsection E. Quality Assurance Plan states: 

"The Contractor shall submit a detailed QAP identifying the methods of surveillance to be used to verify that Standard Performance Levels (SPL) are reached and maintained.  The QAP shall include the Contractor's plan to develop an approach to implementing changes required to meet the SPL.  A single quality assurance point of contact shall be identified for daily coordination of performance defects.  The plan shall be submitted with the proposal, the details of inspection methods and levels for each task area shall be submitted within thirty days of contract start and as revised." 

However there is no mention of this plan in the proposal instructions in Section L of the RFP. Please clarify if this plan is required with the proposal and whether it would be included in the page limit.
RESPONSE:   Please see the response to question # 26.
73. Reference:  Section L.14.1, KP2, instructs the offeror to submit Attachment X, “Mission Suitability Staffing Resources Template.” Section M.3, Subfator 2 refers to Attachment L1, “Independent Government Estimate of Mission Suitability Staffing Resources.” Attachment L1, Sheet MSTSRT is entitled “Mission Suitability Total Staffing Resources Template,” and contains a note: “This template shall be submitted in the Mission Suitability Vol. 1 proposal and the Cost Vol. 2 proposal.”

Additionally, Attachment L1 is not populated with estimates. 

Question/Request:  Does the Government have a preference for which attachment (X or L1) the offeror should submit?

RESPONSE:   The reference to Attachment L1 as the Independent Government Estimate of Mission Suitability Resources is wrongly stated in the RFP.  The reference should have been made to Attachment W.  Attachment X should be submitted with Volume I.  Excel sheet MSTSRT should also be submitted as part of Appendix L1 in Volume II.  These are the same documents, attachment X was created for the sole purpose of being a single sheet to be included in Volume I.
74. Reference:  Section L.11(a) Proposal Preparation Instructions state that, “All hard copies shall be contained in a spiral binder.”

Question/Request:  Does this include three-ring binders? Spiral binding is different and does not allow for removal and insertion of change pages if required by the Government. Please clarify.

RESPONSE:   No.
75. Reference:  Section L.11(a) Proposal Preparation Instructions and Section L.13 Automated Formatted Submission.  Section L.11(a) indicates submission of an original plus 2 electronic copies of the proposal. Section L.13 indicates that two disks (one original and one backup) be provided. 

Question/Request:  Please provide clarification on the number of electronic copies to be submitted.

RESPONSE:   See response to question #36.
76. Reference:  Section L.11(d) Proposal Preparation Instructions and L.15 Preparation of Volume II: Cost/Price.  Section L.11(d) states that 2 copies of the Cost/Price Proposal be submitted to the cognizant DCAA office, but does not specify hard or electronic copies. Section L.15 requires one hard copy and one electronic copy to be submitted to the cognizant DCAA office. 

Question/Request: Does the hard copy and electronic copy specified in L.15 constitute the 2 copies specified in Section L.11(d)?

RESPONSE:   See response to question #36.
77. Reference:  L.13 Automated Formatted Submission.  Paragraph 2 states that MS Word 2002 and Excel 2002 will be used for evaluation of price proposals. No electronic format is provided for evaluation of Volume I, Mission Suitability. 

Question/Request:  Would the Government accept Adobe Acrobat PDF files for submission of Volume I? This format provides for consistency in viewing and printing, and prohibits inadvertent changes that may occur when viewing files in MS Word on machines that have different print drivers and viewing preferences enabled.

RESPONSE:   No.
78. Reference: Section C.4.1. states that “IMTE shall be picked up from users for calibration and repair, and delivered to users after calibration and repair daily.” Section J, Attachment M lists the Government Vehicles. 

Question/Request:  Is one of the vehicles listed in Attachment M to be used for the pickup and delivery of the IMTE required under Task 4 or is the vehicle to be contractor provided?
RESPONSE:   Please see response to question # 70.
79. RFP Reference : Para M.3 Evaluation Factors and Sub- factors, Factor A – Volume 1, Page 66 states as follows:

“Subfactor 1. Management/Technical Approach 

This subfactor will be used to evaluate the offeror’s understanding of the work activity and the soundness and adequacy of the Offeror’s approach to effectively manage, organize, and control the proposed effort.  Consideration will be given to effectiveness and efficiency of the proposed organization; including any subcontracts or teaming; lines of authority, and autonomy of the on-site Project Manager, demonstrated understanding of the requirements of the SOW, and proposed reporting and financial systems.

“The offeror’s approach to phase-in/transition will be evaluated to insure a fully operational work activity (e.g. technical, business, IT security, etc.) at the start of the contract.  Primary areas of concern are continuity of work effort currently being performed by the incumbent contractor, adequacy of staffing levels and staff qualifications, timely transfer (assumption) of existing tasks, and minimizing work interruptions.

The proposal will be evaluated to for any proposed innovations and the offeror’s approach to ensure continual improvement of all contract processes.”

Page 68 of the RFP also states:

“B.  The Mission Suitability subfactors to be numerically scored are weighted as follows:

	Mission Suitability Subfactors


	Points

	Management/Technical Approach
	325

	Staffing
	150

	Quality Assurance
	325

	Safety and Health
	200

	
	

	Total Mission Suitability Points
	1000


Question: Please provide weighting information or order of precedence within the Subfactor 1, Management/Technical Approach on the criteria listed below, as to which of these sub-breakouts are more important than others, if, in fact, they are not all equally weighted.  

1. Offeror’s understanding of the work activity 

2. Soundness and adequacy of the Offeror’s approach to effectively manage, organize, and control the proposed effort

3. Effectiveness and efficiency of the proposed organization:

· Subcontracts or teaming

· Lines of authority

· Autonomy of the on-site Project Manager

· Demonstrated understanding of the requirements of the SOW

· Proposed reporting and financial systems.

4. Approach to phase-in/transition:  

· Continuity of work effort currently being performed by the incumbent contractor

· Adequacy of staffing levels and staff qualifications

· Timely transfer (assumption) of existing tasks

· Minimizing work interruptions.

5. Proposed innovations, and approach to ensure continual improvement of all contract processes.”

RESPONSE:   They are considered essentially equal.

80. RFP Reference: Para L.11.e , Page 47 states as follows:

“Where necessary, a cross-reference sheet to other volumes shall be included.”

Question:  Will such a cross reference be excluded from the page count of 100 pages for Volume I?

RESPONSE:   Yes.  However, Offerors are cautioned not to use cross references as a method to avoid any page count limitations. 
81. RFP Reference :L.12, Proposal Page Limitations, Page 48

Question: Typically an Executive Summary is submitted with an Offeror’s Proposal to the Federal Government. We would like to submit an Executive Summary for this opportunity.  It would not exceed four pages.  If it is submitted would NASA consider this in the Page Count Limitations or not?  If it is page counted would NASA consider raising the Page Limitations for Volume 1 to 104 to provide for the Executive Summary?

RESPONSE:   A short executive summary is allowable and will not be included in the page count.  However, it will also be excluded from any formal evaluation by the Government.

82. RFP Reference: L.12.5, states as follows:
” 5.  Smaller than Arial 12-point font type may be used in figures or charts within the written proposals, so long as the figure or chart does not consist primarily of text.”

Question:  Typically the RFP Section L guideline for font size for proposal Charts, Figures, Illustrations, Diagrams, Pictures, Graphs and Tables is stated as “must be reasonably discernable to the average human eye”.   Many of the above-mentioned items have been created for previous proposals and documents and will require modifications to accommodate Ariel 12 point for this bid. Given that there is a 100-page constraint for Volume I, would NASA allow a font size for the above-mentioned items to use the traditional font size guidelines as stated as “reasonably discernable by the average human eye”? 

RESPONSE:   Please see response to question #32.  Offerors must insure readability by the 

Government.
83. RFP Reference: “Section C, Page 6, Item 4.b. indicates that the Quality Assurance Plan shall be submitted within 30 days of "contract award." Section C, Page 10 indicates that the Quality Assurance Plan shall be submitted within 30 days of "contract start." 

Question: Please clarify whether the government requires this plan 30 days after award (i.e., during the phase-in period) or 30 days after the contractor has started full performance on the contract.

RESPONSE:   Please see the response to question # 26.
84. Question: Based on the government's response to previous questions, we understand that current AFD system will not be made available to a new contractor.

However, will the reporting templates and forms (examples of which were provided in Attachment K) developed for current contract convey to the new contract? Or is the new contractor responsible for developing new versions of these reports and forms?

Similarly, are the ISO work instructions (and related documentation and checklists) associated with all contract functions (referenced in Section C, Page 8, Item 9.a) considered government-owned property? Will they convey to the new contract or is the new contractor responsible for developing new ISO procedures and work instructions?

RESPONSE:   Yes, versions of these reports and forms will be available.  The Government does not anticipated any changes to ISO work instructions. The ISO Work Instructions (and related documentation and checklists) are considered government operating procedures within the government’s Business Management System (BMS).  Any changes and/or revisions will be in accordance with current BMS practices.
85. RFP Reference: L.11.2, Proposal Preparation, General Instruction, page 47
“All hard copies shall be contained in a spiral binder.”  
 

Question: Spiral binding usually holds up to 1” (~100 sheets) of paper.  We anticipate the cost volume to be more than 1 inch thick; resources to provide spiral binding of this size are limited in the commercial world.  We request that the government provide ability to use 3 ring binders as an option.  Alternatively, could GBC bound binders be used in concert with spiral bound volumes as another option?

 
RESPONSE:   GBC binders may be used, but three ring binders are not an option.
86. RFP Reference: L.11.b, Proposal Instructions, Page 47

“Include a cover letter with the proposal, attaching the completed certifications and acknowledgments specified in Section K of the solicitation.”  
 

Question: Do we have to include reps and certs (Attachment K) with the initial proposal submission of the Past Performance on September 30, 2004, or just with the Volume I and II submission on October 14, 2004?

RESPONSE:   Attachment K shall be submitted on October 14, 2004.
87. RFP Reference: Section C–4 Administrative and Financial Database (AFD)

“The Contractor shall develop and maintain a comprehensive administrative and financial database capable of tracking and providing the current status of all contract work, associated management information, and funding status”

Multiple Questions:

1) Will the Government supply any hardware needed to support this database

2) The government lists multiple information requirements, some of which have “current files” listed as types of applications (Excel, Word, PDF, etc.).  Is it the Governments intent that the contractor migrate the existing legacy data into the AFD?

3) How will the Government access this database, and who will be responsible for access security?

RESPONSE:   The Government will provide hardware to support the AFD.  The government expects some of the historical data to be migrated into the AFD.  The Government and the contractor will coordinate appropriate Government access to the system.  It will be the contractor’s responsibility to establish appropriate security measures.
88. Website Reference: C-5.F Financial Management Reports 

NASA Website States: “Glenn Research Center is currently involved in a reorganization which will cause a restructuring of the reporting category tasks.  The task structure will be updated upon contract award”.  

Question: Is offeror correct in it’s understanding that only the business process flow of reports is changing, and not the GRC organizational entities covered under this RFP?  If not, please clarify the changes.

RESPONSE:   No, the organization structure is changing.  For proposal preparation and evaluation purposes, offerors should propose to the current structure.
89. Reference the Calibration Lab Production Summary listed in RFP Section J, Attachment K, entitled Calibration Services Historical Data.  The Government has provided two (2) equipment lists; “Installation Accountable Government Property”, and “Instrument Pool Holdings”.  Neither of the two (2) lists is flagged as the active equipment list.  Request the Government provide the exact equipment list that was used to determine the production level statistics.

RESPONSE:   The government has provided historical data to help the offeror determine the production level and as a representative sample of equipment types.
90. Subfactor 2, Key Personnel, KP1 states that a two page resume is required for all key personnel and is counted in the 100 page count.  Given the page count, is it possible to introduce and provide a short introduction of our key personnel with their highlights and provide the two page resume as an appendix?

RESPONSE:   No. Also please note, in the final RFP dated 8/31/04 there is no page requirement for the resumes.
91. Given the uncertainty of health care and the potential for wage determination increases in the Health and Welfare, will NASA consider not capping the fringe portion of an offerors cost and allow for repricing if there are increases in market factors beyond the offeror’s control over the potential 10 year life of the contract?
RESPONSE:   No.  Please see the final few sentences in G.9 (a).  
92. Is the current laboratory facility registered to ISO/IEC 17025 or is this going to be a future requirement?  If this is going to be a future requirement of the contractor it will be very costly and time consuming.  A third party audit of the metrology labs would be required to attain accreditation.
RESPONSE:   The facility is not currently registered to ISO/IEC 17025, and there is no known future requirement at this time.
93. Are there any uncertainties or budgets currently in place for the Calibration Standards and IMTE?

RESPONSE:   Please refer to additional document titled “GRC Calibration Laboratory Capabilities” to be posted in a future amendment to the final RFP. 
94. If ANSI/NCSL-Z540-1 1994 as revised is changed in the future will the new document be automatically accepted for use? 
RESPONSE:   Any changes will be in accordance with NPD 8730.1.
95. What version of the Fluke Met/Track software is being used?
RESPONSE:   Version 7.01.
96. What disciplines are included in the General Calibrations? I.E. Force, Mass, Temperature, Humidity.

RESPONSE:   Please refer to additional document titled “GRC Calibration Laboratory Capabilities” to be posted in a future amendment to the final RFP. 

97. Does the current Lab have an approved vendor list or will one have to be generated    from our own approved suppliers, also does Glen Research have any criteria to accept vendors.

RESPONSE:   GRC does not have an approved vendors list. The calibration management database contains a list of vendors used to outsource equipment. All vendors must meet ISO and NASA procurement regulations. 
98. Reference Section I, paragraph I.1:  FAR reference the the "NASA 8 percent goal".  Question:   Does this clause apply as this is a small business set aside?
RESPONSE:   This clause is included per NFS 1819.7003.
99. Section J, Attachment A (relocated from Section C), page 6, item 4b indicates that a QAP “shall be submitted to the COTR for approval within 30 days of contract award”. 
Item E, pages 9-10 of the same section states: “The Plan shall be submitted with the proposal, the details of inspection methods and levels for each task area shall be submitted within 30 days of contract start”. Please clarify whether a Quality Assurance Plan (QAP) is required to be submitted with the proposal.  These two statements in the Statement of Work appear to provide different guidance on the QAP submittal.
RESPONSE:   Please see the response to question # 26.
100. In Section L.15 and the Labor Pricing Template (LRPT1), labor escalation percentages have been provided.  The escalation percentage for Year 1 is 3.3%.  Is the Government expecting Offerors to escalate our proposed wages by 3.3% for year 1?

RESPONSE:   No.  The year one rate will be deleted in a planned RFP amendment.   

101. Solicitation section L.16.B, Corporate Structure states “The goal of this area is to obtain information regarding the Offeror and major subcontractors corporate relevant past performance and the relationship of the Offeror to any within the corporation that will substantially contribute to the proposed contract…”  Please clarify “to any [what? e.g., staff member, key person, subcontractor, etc.] within the corporation” 


Also, please clarify how this “corporate relevant past performance” differs from the past performance discussions at the contract/project level.

This requirement also states “For all Offerors that intend to team, the Government will specifically need information from the same past corporate working relationships proposed in the Management/technical Approach section of the Offeror’s Volume I proposal.”  Please clarify where the requirement to discuss “past corporate working relationships” in the Management Volume is found.
 
RESPONSE:   Please see response #47.  Please read the language included in MTA 1.
102. Reference Section J, Attachment A - i.e. the TIALS Statement of Work - (C-4 Administrative and Financial Database -AFD), which states: “the Contractor shall develop and maintain a comprehensive administrative and financial database”.  

What is the status of the AFD development as it currently exists?  Of the eleven data elements listed in C-4, which data elements are fully developed and completed and therefore require only maintenance, and which data elements require complete design, development, and implementation from the beginning.

RESPONSE:   The AFD that currently exists is owned by the current contractor and will not be available for the follow on contract. The data and most of the spreadsheet, documents and templates associated with AFD are government owned and will be available to the follow on contractor.  Also please see response to # 87.
103. Reference Section J, Attachment A  -  i.e. the TIALS Statement of Work  -   (C-4 Administrative and Financial Database -AFD) 

It would appear from the three-column “data elements” table in the SOW section C-4 that the “Administrative and Financial Database” as it currently exists is a collection of Word, Excel, and PDF files, with much of the functionality as yet not developed.  This conclusion is drawn from the “blanks” for the “current file” column for many of the data elements.  Is this an accurate conclusion and understanding of the state of development? Does the third column “Current File” indicate to offerors the level of completeness of the current AFD,  (i.e., a blank next to a data element would indicate that this functionality for this data element is not yet part of the AFD and needs to be developed).  

RESPONSE:   No, the data and most of the spreadsheet, documents and templates associated with AFD are government owned and will be available to the follow on contractor.

104. Is the contractor free to develop the AFD in any software language or database architecture it chooses, or is the configuration and design of the system and its associated programming predetermined and established by the government?

Reference Section J, Attachment A - i.e. the TIALS Statement of Work -   (C-4 Administrative and Financial Database -AFD)   which states
“The AFD as it exists and is further developed is the property of the Government” 

Are offerors able to see the AFD as it currently exists so as to determine the resources required to complete development and maintain the system?

If Offerors are unable to assess the state of the current AF database, accurate administrative staffing and cost estimates to satisfy the requirements of C-4 become problematic from both a proposal and evaluation perspective.
RESPONSE:   Offerors will not be able to see the current AFD. Offerors are free to develop the AFD in any software language or database architecture it chooses. It must contain all elements contained in C-4 and must be compatible with existing government owned systems and data.
105. Reference L.14  SUBFACTOR 1.  MANAGEMENT/TECHNICAL APPROACH
“Offeror shall provide the DCAA approval status of its accounting, estimating, compensation, property management, and purchasing system.”
DCAA does not “approve” systems.  They perform audits and reviews and render opinions as to the “adequacy” of the items in the review.  Also, when the government uses a phrase such as “purchasing system” and requires offerors to provide “approval status” they are leaving a lot open to interpretation.  For example, are they referring to a CPSR or are they referring to some other type of audit.  Offerors should be asked to provide the “condition of adequacy” of specific reviews and the exact type of DCAA audit or review should be specified, not just a generic term such as “accounting” or “estimating”.  These are not the names of specific audits performed by DCAA.  Please clarify.

RESPONSE:   Please provide information from any DCAA reviews on current business systems.

106. Section J, Attachment G, the Collective Bargaining Agreement, page 17 provides the company contribution for the Pension Agreement at $69.00 per week and expiring April 2003.  Has the rate change?  If yes, what is the current contribution and how long does it run?  In addition, Appendix A provides the current pay rates run through April 2003.  Have these pay rates changed?  If yes, what is the current pay rate and how long is it valid for?

RESPONSE:   See responses to # 3. 
